
 

 

 ADDENDUM THREE 

 

 
DATE:  December 5, 2013 
 
TO:  All Vendors  
 
FROM: Michelle Thompson/Nancy Storant, Buyers 

State Purchasing Bureau  
 
RE:  Questions and Answers for RFP Number 4562Z1 

to be opened December 16, 2013 2:00 p.m. Central Time 

 

 
Following are the questions submitted and answers provided for the above mentioned 
Request For Proposal.  The questions and answers are to be considered as part of the 
Request For Proposal. 

QUESTIONS ANSWERS 

1. Whether companies from Outside USA 
can apply for this ?? (From India or 
Canada) 

Yes, companies from outside the US can 
apply for this. 

2. Whether we need to come over there for 
meetings ?? 

In person meetings are on an as needed 
basis.  Teleconferencing is permissible 

3. Can we perform the tasks (related to 
RFP) outside USA ?? (From India or 
Canada) 

Yes, a contractor can perform the tasks 
outside the USA 

4. Can we submit our proposals via email ?  No, only sealed bids will be accepted. 

5. Number of providers or NPI numbers that 
are being billed for? And how are the 
providers of these NPI's classified (MD, 
NP, LCSW)? 

The question is outside the scope of the 
RFP.  The RFP is not for billing outside 
vendors or patients.  It is to process 
medicals bill from vendors (i.e. doctors, 
clinics and hospitals) for our patients who 
are state wards with no medical insurance 
coverage. 

Gerry A. Oligmueller 
                       Acting Director 
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QUESTIONS ANSWERS 

6. Are there any facilities that are hospitals? 
or what type of facilities are being billed 
for? 

The question is outside the scope of the 
RFP.  The RFP is not for billing outside 
vendors or patients.  It is to process 
medicals bill from vendors (i.e. doctors, 
clinics and hospitals) for our patients who 
are state wards with no medical insurance 
coverage. 

7. Are you wanting to use your software or 
ours? 

The question is outside the scope of the 
RFP.  The RFP is not for billing outside 
vendors or patients.  It is to process 
medicals bill from vendors (i.e. doctors, 
clinics and hospitals) for our patients who 
are state wards with no medical insurance 
coverage. 

8. Are you looking also for EHR software? No, the State is not looking for EHR 
software. 

9. What are your Accounts Receivable? 
Either monthly or annual? 

The question is outside the scope of the 
RFP.  The RFP is not for billing outside 
vendors or patients.  It is to process 
medicals bill from vendors (i.e. doctors, 
clinics and hospitals) for our patients who 
are state wards with no medical insurance 
coverage. 

10. Is there any old aging of claims to be 
worked? 

The question is outside the scope of the 
RFP.  The RFP is not for billing outside 
vendors.  It is to process medicals bill from 
vendors (i.e. doctors, clinics and hospitals) 
for our patients who are state wards with no 
medical insurance coverage. 

11. What type of services are being billed, 
(specialty wise and facility)? 

The question is outside the scope of the 
RFP.  The RFP is not for billing outside 
vendors.  It is to process medicals bill from 
vendors (i.e. doctors, clinics and hospitals) 
for our patients who are state wards with no 
medical insurance coverage. 

12. Claim number for the year seems to be 
low, is this average?  So is this only for 
specific counties? 

Yes, average numbers were provided 

No, the resulting contract is not only for 
specific counties. 

13. Do you know how many patient 
statements you send out on average, 
either monthly or annual? 

The question is outside the scope of the 
RFP.  The RFP is not for billing outside 
vendors.  It is to process medicals bill from 
vendors (i.e. doctors, clinics and hospitals) 
for our patients who are state wards with no 
medical insurance coverage. 
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QUESTIONS ANSWERS 

14. Questions on the Performance Bond, Is 
this usually requested?  And on average 
how much do you normally ask for on 
this?  This is something I have not heard 
of on medical billing contracts. 

Yes, per Section III. CC. Performance Bond 

“The selected contractor may be required to 
supply a certified check or a bond executed 
by a corporation authorized to contract 
surety in the State of Nebraska, payable to 
the State of Nebraska, which shall be valid 
for the life of the contract to include any 
renewal and/or extension periods.  The 
amount of the certified check or bond must 
be ten percent (10%) of the contract amount 
or not to exceed $230,000.00   The check or 
bond, if required will guarantee that the 
selected contractor will faithfully perform all 
requirements, terms and conditions of the 
contract.  Failure to comply shall be grounds 
for forfeiture of the check or bond as 
liquidated damages.  Amount of forfeiture 
will be determined by the agency based on 
loss to the State.  The bond or certified 
check will be returned when the service has 
been satisfactorily completed as solely 
determined by the State, after termination or 
expiration of the contract.”   

15. On page 26 of Project description and 
Scope of Work, section B, 1-3 Can you 
provide this information on your network? 

The question is outside the scope of the 
RFP.  The RFP is not for billing outside 
vendors or patients.  It is to process 
medicals bill from vendors (i.e. doctors, 
clinics and hospitals) for our patients who 
are state wards with no medical insurance 
coverage. The Contractor will be required to 
have their own network of providers for our 
patients to access as part of the contractors 
system. 

16. Is this billing for Medicare, Medicaid and 
all commercial  claims? 

The question is outside the scope of the 
RFP.  The RFP is not for billing outside 
vendors or patients.  It is to process 
medicals bill from vendors (i.e. doctors, 
clinics and hospitals) for our patients who 
are state wards with no medical insurance 
coverage. 

17. Page 26 of Project description of Scope 
of Work, "Contractor will provide medical 
bill processing and allow DHHS Regional 
Center to use their network of healthcare 
providers" please explain? 

The contractor will have a network of 
medical services providers the DHHS 
Regional Centers will be allowed to send 
patients for medical services. 
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QUESTIONS ANSWERS 

18. The effective date is 2/1/2014 even 
though the existing plan year is renewing 
1/1/2014.  Since the RFP requests up to 
a 5-year period of annual rating, please 
confirm if you are intending for the new 
renewal date/plan year to become 
February 1st each year, or if this first year 
will be an 11-month period 2/1/2014 
through 12/31/2014, then 1/1 through 
12/31 thereafter. 

The first year will be for an 11 month period. 
The following years will be for a 12 month 
period. 

19. Is this RFP for Outpatient Billing or 
Inpatient Billing 

The question is outside the scope of the 
RFP.  The RFP is not for billing outside 
vendors or patients.  It is to process 
medicals bill from vendors (i.e. doctors, 
clinics and hospitals) for our patients who 
are state wards with no medical insurance 
coverage. 

20. Will the contractor be provided with a 
Billing Software 

No, the contractor will not be provided with a 
billing software. 

21. Who is the incumbent billing service? Blue Cross Blue Shield of Nebraska is the 
incumbent contractor. 

22. What current hardware & software is 
utilized to provide billing services? (This 
will allow us to know how we may 
interface with the system) 

Information on our admissions and 
discharges are provided weekly on a 
preformatted Excel spreadsheet via the 
contractor’s secure email system. 

23. Is a full ePCR solution needed or is 
interfacing the systems sufficient? 

The question is outside the scope of the 
RFP.  The RFP is not for billing outside 
vendors or patients.  It is to process 
medicals bill from vendors (i.e. doctors, 
clinics and hospitals) for our patients who 
are state wards with no medical insurance 
coverage. 

24. What rate or percentage is the State 
currently charged? 

The State currently reimburses the 
contractor at cost for medical claims 
processed within its provider network with a 
10% processing fee. 

The link below will provide the current 
contract: 
http://das.nebraska.gov/materiel/purchasing/
contracts/pdfs/37887(o4)ren(2)awd.pdf 

25. What were the total billable calls in 2012 
and YTD 2013? 

The question is outside the scope of the 
RFP.  The RFP is not for billing outside 
vendors or patients.  It is to process 
medicals bill from vendors (i.e. doctors, 
clinics and hospitals) for our patients who 
are state wards with no medical insurance 
coverage. 
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QUESTIONS ANSWERS 

26. What were the gross revenues in 2012 
and YTD 2013? 

The question is outside the scope of the 
RFP.  The RFP is not for billing outside 
vendors or patients.  It is to process 
medicals bill from vendors (i.e. doctors, 
clinics and hospitals) for our patients who 
are state wards with no medical insurance 
coverage. 

27. What were the net collections in 2012 
and YTD 2013? 

The question is outside the scope of the 
RFP.  The RFP is not for billing outside 
vendors or patients.  It is to process 
medicals bill from vendors (i.e. doctors, 
clinics and hospitals) for our patients who 
are state wards with no medical insurance 
coverage. 

28. What was the percentage of collections 
in 2012 (net/gross) and YTD 2013? 

The question is outside the scope of the 
RFP.  The RFP is not for billing outside 
vendors or patients.  It is to process 
medicals bill from vendors (i.e. doctors, 
clinics and hospitals) for our patients who 
are state wards with no medical insurance 
coverage. 

29. Payer Mix Could you please provide the 
payer mix (percentage breakdown of 
billing types) for 2012 and YTD 2013? 
Medicare: %   

Medicaid: %   

Private Insurance: %   

Self-Pay: %   

Other: % 

The question is outside the scope of the 
RFP.  The RFP is not for billing outside 
vendors or patients.  It is to process 
medicals bill from vendors (i.e. doctors, 
clinics and hospitals) for our patients who 
are state wards with no medical insurance 
coverage. 

30. Current Service Rates 

ALS Emergency: $ 

ALS Non-Emergency: $ 

BLS Non-Emergency: $ 

BLS Non-Emergency: $ 

Mileage: $ 

The question is outside the scope of the 
RFP.  The RFP is not for billing outside 
vendors or patients.  It is to process 
medicals bill from vendors (i.e. doctors, 
clinics and hospitals) for our patients who 
are state wards with no medical insurance 
coverage. 

31. Call Volume Information 

Non-Emergent  _____________ 

Emergency       _____________ 

Total                 _____________ 

The question is outside the scope of the 
RFP.  The RFP is not for billing outside 
vendors or patients.  It is to process 
medicals bill from vendors (i.e. doctors, 
clinics and hospitals) for our patients who 
are state wards with no medical insurance 
coverage. 
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QUESTIONS ANSWERS 

32. Will a lockbox be provided? Who will 
incur charges associated with it? 

The question is outside the scope of the 
RFP.  The RFP is not for billing outside 
vendors or patients.  It is to process 
medicals bill from vendors (i.e. doctors, 
clinics and hospitals) for our patients who 
are state wards with no medical insurance 
coverage. 

33. In regards to the toll free telephone line, 
are there designated hours or can the 
awarded Firm provide the line during 
9am to 5pm? 

The question is outside the scope of the 
RFP.  The RFP is not for billing outside 
vendors or patients.  It is to process 
medicals bill from vendors (i.e. doctors, 
clinics and hospitals) for our patients who 
are state wards with no medical insurance 
coverage. 

34. How often and for how long will the Firm 
need to meet with State personnel? May 
meetings also be held via video or 
teleconference? 

In person meetings are on a as needed 
basis.  Teleconferencing is permissible. 

35. Will the bidder be excluded/disqualified 
from bidding if the company does not 
have any employees in Nebraska? 

No, the State does not require having 
employees in Nebraska. 

36. Will the bidder be excluded/disqualified 
from bidding if the company does not 
have a business registration in Nebraska, 
Certificate of Good Standing/Letter of 
Good Standing, etc.? 

No, per Section II, N. Secretary of State/Tax 
Commissioner Registration Requirements 
“All bidders shall be authorized to transact 
business in the State of Nebraska.  All 
bidders are expected to comply with all 
Nebraska Secretary of State registration 
requirements…The Bidder who is the 
recipient of an Intent to Award will be 
required to certify that it has so complied and 
produce a true and exact copy of its current 
(within 90 days), valid Certificate of Good 
Standing or Letter of Good Standing; or in 
the case registration is not required, to 
provide, in writing, the reason as to why 
none is required.  This must be 
accomplished prior to the award of the 
contract.” 

37. Will the bidder be disqualified if it does 
not have any Nebraska references? May 
the bidder list references from a different 
state? 

 No, the bidder will not be disqualified if they 
do not have Nebraska references. 

Yes, the bidder may list references from a 
different state. 
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QUESTIONS ANSWERS 

38. Is it known if training will be needed? 

a.   If yes, how many individuals need to 
be trained? 

b.   Please state what type of training will 
be needed (i.e.: document training, 
software/hardware 
training/compliance training/use of 
PCR/medicare training). 

c.   How long/how often will training be 
needed? 

d.   Are there contractual restrictions in 
regards to training? 

e.   How many locations will be needed in 
order for us to provide training? (i.e.: 
will there be different sites where 
training will need to occur, such as 
multiple rooms or various locations?) 

f.   What is the shift schedule? (i.e.: how 
many hours per day and how many 
days for each type of training?) 

 It is unknown at this time. 

39. Is it mandatory to subcontract? No, it is not mandatory to subcontract. 

40. Will the bidder be disqualified if it does 
not have an affirmative action plan in 
place? 

Bidders must comply with the language as 
stated in Section III, C. Compliance with Civil 
Rights Laws and Equal Opportunity 
Employment / Nondiscrimination “The 
contractor shall comply with all applicable 
local, State and Federal statutes and 
regulations regarding civil rights laws and 
equal opportunity employment. The 
Nebraska Fair Employment Practice Act 
prohibits contractors of the State of 
Nebraska, and their subcontractors, from 
discriminating against any employee or 
applicant for employment, with respect to 
hire, tenure, terms, conditions or privileges 
of employment because of race, color, 
religion, sex, disability, or national origin 
(Neb. Rev. Stat. §48-1101 to 48-1125).   The 
contractor guarantees compliance with the 
Nebraska Fair Employment Practice Act, 
and breach of this provision shall be 
regarded as a material breach of contract.  
The contractor shall insert a similar provision 
in all subcontracts for services to be covered 
by any contract resulting from this Request 
for Proposal.” 
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QUESTIONS ANSWERS 

41. Will the bidder be disqualified if it does 
not have e-Verify (but it does make sure 
all employees are eligible to work in the 
USA by having them fill out an I-9 form)? 
May the bidder enroll in e-verify upon 
award of a contract? 

No, a bidder will not be disqualified if they do 
not have e-Verify per Section III, ZZ. 
Employee Work Eligibility Status, “The 
Contractor is required and hereby agrees to 
use a federal immigration verification system 
to determine the work eligibility status of 
employees physically performing services 
within the State of Nebraska. A federal 
immigration verification system means the 
electronic verification of the work 
authorization program authorized by the 
Illegal Immigration Reform and Immigrant 
Responsibility Act of 1996, 8 U.S.C. 1324a, 
known as the E-Verify Program, or an 
equivalent federal program designated by 
the United States Department of Homeland 
Security or other federal agency authorized 
to verify the work eligibility status of a newly 
hired employee. 

If the Contractor is an individual or sole 
proprietorship, the following applies: 
 
1.  The Contractor must complete the 
United States Citizenship Attestation Form, 
available on the Department of 
Administrative Services website at 
www.das.state.ne.us.   
 
2.  If the Contractor indicates on such 
attestation form that he or she is a qualified 
alien, the Contractor agrees to provide the 
US Citizenship and Immigration Services 
documentation required to verify the 
Contractor’s lawful presence in the United 
States using the Systematic Alien 
Verification for Entitlements (SAVE) 
Program.  
  
3.  The Contractor understands and agrees 
that lawful presence in the United States is 
required and the Contractor may be 
disqualified or the contract terminated if 
such lawful presence cannot be verified as 
required by Neb. Rev. Stat. §4-108. 
 

42. Does the bidder need to have an office in 
Nebraska? 

No, the State does not require an office in 
Nebraska. 

 


